
 

September 26, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 25 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 
 

September 26, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING 

OPEN SESSION 7:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 
 

CITY OF OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
CHAIR:  Damon Robison 
VICE-CHAIR:  Carl Durling 
MEMBERS:  Randy Chapman; Wyatt Jenkins; Michael Britton, Susan Sears, Tammy Flicker 
 

 
ALL MEETINGS ARE RECORDED AND BROADCAST LIVE 

 
This meeting may be broadcast remotely via audio and/or video conference at the following address: 

Cota Cole, LLP, 2261 Lava Ridge Court, Roseville, California 95661. 
Meeting is streamed live at cityoforoville.org and on YouTube  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

Commissioners: Tammy Flicker, Michael Britton, Randy Chapman, Wyatt Jenkins, Susan Sears, Vice 
Chairperson Carl Durling, Chairperson Damon Robison 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

INSTRUCTIONS TO INDIVIDUALS WHO WISH TO SPEAK 

If you would like to address the commission at this meeting, you are requested to complete the 
blue speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the City Clerk, who 
is seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Mayor or presiding chair in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal 
information on the form is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior 
to the conclusion of the staff presentation for that item.  Council has established time limitations of 
three (3) minutes per speaker on all items and an overall time limit of thirty minutes for non-agenda items. 
If more than 10 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the time limitation would be reduced 
to two minutes per speaker. If more than 15 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the first 
15 speakers will be randomly selected to speak at the beginning of the meeting, with the remaining 
speakers given an opportunity at the end. (California Government Code §54954.3(b)). Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54954.2, the commission is prohibited from taking action except for a brief 
response from the Council or staff to statements or questions relating to a non-agenda item. 

 

 

1



 

September 26, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 25 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on any subject not on the 
agenda related to the Planning Commission. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. The Planning Commission may approve the minutes of the August 22, 2019 Planning 
Commission Meeting 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the Minutes for the August 22, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The Public Hearing Procedure is as follows: 

 Chairperson opens the public hearing. 

 Staff and Applicant introduce item and take questions from the Commissioners 

 Speakers are requested to provide a speaker card to the City Clerk. Hearing is opened for 
public comment limited to three (3) minutes. Under Government Code 54954.3. the time 
for each presentation may be limited. 

 Public comment session is closed 

 Commissioners, discuss, debate and action. 

1. APPROVAL OF MINOR USE PERMIT FOR BEER AND WINE SALES AT CHIPOTLE 
MEXICAN GRILL RESTAURANT 

The Planning Commission will consider a use permit to allow the sale of beer and wine for on-site 
consumption at the new Chipotle Mexican Grill restaurant at 325 Oroville Dam Blvd., #E1. 

RECOMMENDATION   

Conduct a Public Hearing on the Use Permit; and 

Approve Minor Use Permit UP 19-05, with the recommended findings and conditions; and 

ADOPT RESOLUTION # 2019-12 – A RESOLUTION OF THE ORVILLE PLANNING 
COMMISSION MAKING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING BEER AND WINE 
SALES AT THE NEW CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL RESTAURANT AT 325 OROVILLE DAM 
BLVD #E1. 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

2. SOUTH OROVILLE REZONING WORKSHOP 

The Planning Commission will conduct a workshop to review current zoning in the South Oroville 
area, discuss possible changes which might better reflect existing land uses and encourage new 
investment.  

RECOMMENDATION  

Conduct an initial discussion about South Oroville and provide input to staff regarding potential 
rezoning. 

 

2



 

September 26, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 25 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

The Director shall report on information pertinent to the Planning Commission. 

COMMISSION REPORTS 

Reports by commission members on information pertinent to the Planning Commission. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourn to Thursday, October 24, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. in the Oroville City Council Chambers 

 

 

***  NOTICE *** 

Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 

Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public meeting process. If 

you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public meetings, please 

contact the City Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you wish to attend, so that 

we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed for public session items, 

less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, 

Oroville, California. 

 

***  NOTICE *** 

Any person who is dissatisfied with the decisions of this Planning Commission may appeal to the 

City Council by filing with the Zoning Administrator within fifteen days from the date of the action.  A 

written notice of appeal specifying the grounds and an appeal fee immediately payable to the City 

of Oroville must be submitted at the time of filing.  The Oroville City Council may sustain, modify or 

overrule this decision. 

 

  

3



 

August 22, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 
 

August 22, 2019 
MINUTES 

 
 

THIS MEETING WAS RECORDED LIVE AND CAN BE VIEWED ON CITYOFOROVILLE.ORG 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Meeting called to order at 7:03pm by Vice Chair Durling 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Commissioners: Tammy Flicker, Michael Britton, Randy Chapman (7:04pm), Wyatt Jenkins, 
Susan Sears, Vice Chairperson Carl Durling 

ABSENT: Chairperson Damon Robison (Excused) 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Led by Vice Chair Durling 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Motion by Commissioner Sears and second by Commissioner Chapman to approve the Minutes 
of the June 27, 2019 and July 10, 2019 Planning Commission Meetings. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Commissioner Jenkins, Flicker, Sears, Jenkins, Vice Chair Durling 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: Commissioner Britton  
ABSENT:  Chair Robison 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  

2. SIGN PROGRAM AT KENTUCKY FRIED CHICKEN RESTAURANT (KFC) 

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider an application to approve part 
of the KFC proposed sign program (#B1907-055).   

Public Speaker: Brian Littrell 

Motion by Commissioner Chapman and second by Commissioner Britton to conditionally approve 
the Sign Program application at the new KFC restaurant at 660 Oro Dam Boulevard, excluding 
the Freestanding Sign, which must come back to the commission. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Commissioner Jenkins, Flicker, Sears, Jenkins, Britton, Vice Chair Durling 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT:  Chair Robison 

 

4

Item 1.



 

August 22, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. REQUEST FOR STREET NAMES 

The commission considered the approval of two proposed street names. 

Motion by Commissioner Chapman and second by Commissioner Sears to approve the name 
Holly Trail (off of Acacia Ave) and Connor Court (off Valley View Dr) and the adding of the 
names to the City Map. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Commissioner Jenkins, Flicker, Sears, Jenkins, Britton, Vice Chair Durling 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT:  Chair Robison 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Planner Wes Ervin – AB 2 Grant funding application being prepared for housing development; Updating 
Sphere of Influence; annexing south Lincoln St.; working on rezoning south Oroville.  

COMMISSION REPORTS 

None 

ADJOURNMENT 

Vice Chair Durling adjourned the meeting at 7:47pm.  

 

APPROVED:      ATTESTED: 

 

_______________________________  _________________________________ 

Vice Chair Carl Durling    Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover 

5

Item 1.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
 DISCUSSION 

The Chipotle Mexican Grill with drive-thru restaurant is now under construction, having 
been approved by the Planning Commission on March 28, 2019 via Use Permit 19-02.  
This permit application augments the Use permit by allowing the restaurant to sell beer 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, September 26, 2019 

RE:  APPROVAL OF MINOR USE PERMIT FOR BEER AND WINE SALES AT CHIPOTLE 
MEXICAN GRILL RESTAURANT 

SUMMARY:  The Planning Commission will consider a use permit to allow the sale of beer and 
wine for on-site consumption at the new Chipotle Mexican Grill restaurant at 325 Oroville Dam 
Blvd., #E1. 

RECOMMENDATION   

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the Use Permit; and 

2. Approve Minor Use Permit UP 19-05, with the recommended findings and conditions; and 

3. ADOPT RESOLUTION # 2019-12 – A RESOLUTION OF THE ORVILLE PLANNING 
COMMISSION MAKING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING BEER AND 
WINE SALES AT THE NEW CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL RESTAURANT AT 325 
OROVILLE DAM BLVD #E1. 

 

APPLICANTS: Chipotle Mexican Grill, LLC, DBA: Chipotle Mexican Grill 

LOCATION:   
325 Oroville Dam Blvd. #E1 
Oroville, CA 95965 

GENERAL PLAN:  RBS – Retail and Business 
                               Services 

ZONING:   C-2 – Intensive Commercial 

FLOOD ZONE:  X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Part of an existing facility previously exempted in 
Use Permit 19-02 (G.C 15301). 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Wes Ervin, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Leo DePaola, Director 
Community Development Director 

Leo DePaola 
Community Development Director 

 

6

Item 1.



 2 

and wine for on-site consumption.  

The application states that beer and wine will be sold and consumed only in the 2,700 
square foot interior space, and not in the two patios and not at the drive-through.   

Applicant notes that beer and wine sales are typical at all Chipotle restaurants 
worldwide. The application includes more project details and the applicant’s arguments 
for approval. 

The application has been routed to the Oroville Police Department for review. The 
applicant will separately apply for a Type #41 License from the Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control, which will also be reviewed by the Police Department. 

This is a Minor Use Permit because this project is exempt from CEQA by virtue of it 
being part of an existing project that is exempt (OSC 17.48.015. 

 

Required Findings for Alcohol Sales (OSC 17.16.160) 

Before approving a use permit for alcohol sales, the Planning Commission must 
consider each of the following issues and make appropriate findings (Staff’s comments 
are in italics, draft findings are in the Resolution):  

1. The nature of all land uses within 500 feet of the proposed alcoholic beverage 

sales, and in particular, the location of similar nearby uses and the location of 

residences, parks, schools and houses of worship.  

The restaurant is in an isolated location immediately adjacent to the Highway 

70 Oro Dam Blvd. offramp, and is neither near similar nearby uses, nor near 

any residential or assembly uses; 

2. Appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance of the building 

exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter and debris. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions; 

3. Lighting of exterior areas, including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of 
the building. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions 

4. Protection of adjacent properties from noise, odors and undue light and glare, as 
well as illegal activity. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions 
 

5. Provision of onsite security, both inside and outside the building, to satisfy 

any concerns raised by the chief of police. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions 

6. Hours of operation. 

Applicant states that the hours of alcohol sales are identical to the hours the 
restaurant is open – 9 am to 11 pm daily. 

7. Controls on occupancy limits inside of the building and loitering outside of the 
building. 

This requirement is added to the project conditions 
 

7

Item 1.



 3 

8. Prevention of adverse effect of the use on the value of adjacent properties. 

As part of a multi-tenant shopping center, this restaurant is likely to enhance the 
patronage and thus the value of adjacent properties; 

9. Whether approval would result in an undue concentration of these uses, and 

whether public convenience or necessity would mitigate the issue of undue 

concentration. 

The Police Department and ABC determine if there is an undue 

concentration in the area. At this time there is no indication of an 

overconcentration. 

 

Proposed Conditions of Approval. Any use permit for alcoholic beverage sales may 

include any conditions necessary to ensure that the use operates in a manner that 

provides adequate protection of public health, safety and welfare. (Ord. 1749 § 4) 

Proposed conditions of approval: 

1. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning 

Commissioners, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from liability for 

any award, damages, costs, and/or fees incurred by the City and/or awarded to any 

plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this permit or any environmental or 

other documentation related to approval of this permit. Applicant further agrees to 

provide a defense for the City in any such action; 

2. Applicant shall sell beer and wine only for on-site consumption indoors, and not for 

consumption in the patios; 

3. Applicant shall not sell beer and wine at the drive-through; 

4. Applicant shall obtain a Type #41 Beer and Wine license from the California 

Department of Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC); 

5. Applicant will take appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance of the 

building exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter and debris; 

6. Applicant shall ensure adequate lighting of exterior areas, including parking lots, to 

discourage loitering outside of the building; 

7. Applicant will ensure protection of adjacent properties from noise, odors and undue 

light and glare, as well as illegal activity; 

8. Applicant will maintain adequate onsite security, both inside and outside the 

building, to satisfy any concerns raised by the chief of police or general public; 

9. Applicant shall monitor occupancy, and will institute controls to limit the number of 

patrons both inside of the building and outside of the building; 

10. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, upon 

its own motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been granted 

pursuant to the provisions of this section upon finding any of the following, based 

on substantial evidence: 

a. Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year after 

8

Item 1.



 4 

it was granted. 

b. Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated. 

c. law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 26, has been 

violated in connection with the permit; 

d. The permit was obtained by fraud. 

11. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information provided as 

part of the application are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief. 

Any misinformation provided, whether intentional or unintentional, that was 

considered in the issuance of this permit may be grounds for revocation. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
None  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Application packet 
2. Resolution 2019-12 
3. Use Permit 19-02, approving the original restaurant 
  

 

9

Item 1.



 

 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. P2019-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ORVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING FINDINGS 
AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING BEER AND WINE SALES AT THE NEW 
CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL RESTAURANT AT 325 OROVILLE DAM BLVD #E1. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oroville staff has approved a new drive through Chipotle 
Restaurant via Use Permit 19-02; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the restaurant owner also proposes to sell beer and wine for on-site 
consumption; and  

WHEREAS, The City of Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) Section 17.16.160 
specifies that a Use Permit is required to sell alcohol; and 
 

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission 
considered the comments and concerns of public agencies, property owners, and 
members of the public who are potentially affected by the approval of the use permit 
described herein, and also considered the City’s staff report regarding the change. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION as 
follows: 
 

1. This action has been determined to be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 15301 “Existing Facilities.” 
 

2. The Planning Commission approves the findings required by Section 17.16.160 
of the Oroville City Code, as described in this Resolution; 

 

3. The Planning Commission approves the permit Conditions described in this 
Resolution. 

 
REQUIRED FINDINGS (OSC 17.16.160 

 

1. The location of the facility and all land uses within 500 feet of the proposed 

alcoholic beverage sales avoids conflicts with nearby land uses, residences, 

parks, schools and houses of worship.  

2. The project includes appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance 

of the building exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter 

and debris. 

3. Lighting of exterior areas is adequate, including parking lots, to discourage loitering 
outside of the building. 

10

Item 1.



 

 
 

2 

4. This property and adjacent properties are appropriately protected from noise, odors 
and undue light and glare, as well as illegal activity. 

 
5. Onsite security, both inside and outside the building, is adequate to satisfy 

any concerns raised by the chief of police. 

6. Hours of operation are identical to the hours the restaurant is open – 9 am to 11 
pm daily. 

7. Measures to controls occupancy limits inside of the building and loitering outside of 
the building are in place. 

 

8. Adverse effects of the use on the value of adjacent properties are avoided 

9. Subject to review by the California Department of Alcohol Beverage Control, 

approval does not appear to result in an undue concentration of these uses, 

and would thus not trigger the need for a determination of public convenience or 

necessity. 

 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

1. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning 

Commissioners, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from liability 

for any award, damages, costs, and/or fees incurred by the City and/or awarded 

to any plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this permit or any 

environmental or other documentation related to approval of this permit. 

Applicant further agrees to provide a defense for the City in any such action; 

2. Applicant shall sell beer and wine only for on-site consumption indoors, and not 

for consumption in the patios; 

3. Applicant shall not sell beer and wine at the drive-through; 

4. Applicant shall obtain a Type #41 Beer and Wine license from the California 

Department of Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC); 

5. Applicant will take appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance of the 

building exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter and 

debris; 

6. Applicant shall ensure adequate lighting of exterior areas, including parking lots, 

to discourage loitering outside of the building; 

7. Applicant will ensure protection of adjacent properties from noise, odors and 

undue light and glare, as well as illegal activity; 

8. Applicant will maintain adequate onsite security, both inside and outside the 

building, to satisfy any concerns raised by the chief of police or general public; 

9. Applicant shall monitor occupancy, and will institute controls to limit the number of 

patrons both inside of the building and outside of the building; 

10. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, 

11

Item 1.



 

 
 

3 

upon its own motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been granted 

pursuant to the provisions of this section upon finding any of the following, based 

on substantial evidence: 

a. Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year after it 

was granted. 

b. Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated. 

c. law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 26, has been 

violated in connection with the permit; 

d. The permit was obtained by fraud. 

11. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information provided 

as part of the application are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and 

belief. Any misinformation provided, whether intentional or unintentional, that was 

considered in the issuance of this permit may be grounds for revocation. 

 
 
 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 26th of 
September 2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             
                                                                                                  
 
_______________________________              _______________________________ 
JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     DAMON ROBISON, CHAIRPERSON 

12

Item 1.



13

Item 1.



14

Item 1.



15

Item 1.



16

Item 1.



17

Item 1.



18

Item 1.



19

Item 1.



20

Item 1.



 

March 28, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4 

6. TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (PW1810-004) - WEST SIDE OF 7TH AVE BETWEEN ORO DAM 
BLVD AND OAK ST 

The Oroville Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider approving a 
Tentative Parcel map located on the West side of 7th between Oroville dam Blvd and Oak 
streets creating two lots one 6.0 acres and one 2.4 acres 

Motion by Commissioner Sears and second by Commissioner Flicker to APPROVE the 
recommended Findings for Tentative Parcel Map No.  19-01; and APPROVE Resolution No. 
P2019-07 A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING 
FINDINGS AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP LOCATED AT 
2430 SOUTH 7TH STREET, OROVILLE, CA. Passed  

AYES: Commissioner Jenkins, Chapman, Britton, Sears, Flicker, Chair Robison 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: Commissioner Durling 

ABSTAIN: None 

7. APPROVAL OF CHIPOTLE DRIVE THRU RESTAURANT (PL 1901-007) - 355 ORO DAM 
BLVD- PAD 2 

The Oroville Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider approving a      
Chipotle Drive Thru restaurant on Pad 2 location at 355 Oro Dam Blvd, on the Feather River 
Crossing on the corner of Feather River Blvd and Oroville Dam Blvd.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Motion by Commissioner Chapman and second by Commissioner Britton to APPROVE the 
recommended Findings for Use Permit No. 19-02; and APPROVE Resolution No. P2019-06 A 
RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING FINDINGS AND 
CONDITIONALLY APPROVING USE PERMIT # 19-02 FOR A DRIVE THROUGH 
RESTAURANT; and add to the Conditional use permit that lane lines must be extended down 
Feather River Blvd from Oro Dam Blvd to reduce confusion when arriving at the stop light from 
Feather River Blvd.  

AYES: Commissioner Jenkins, Chapman, Britton, Sears, Flicker, Chair Robison 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: Commissioner Durling 

ABSTAIN: None 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

None 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

Unanimous direction given to staff to provide agendas and packets to Commissioners by no later than 
Friday morning.  

 

 

721

Item 1.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
 DISCUSSION 

Staff seeks initial input from the Commission and the public regarding possible 
rezoning of the South Oroville area to encourage investment. This is the first of several 
meetings over the next several months with local residents, business owners, and all 
interested stakeholders, after which a comprehensive rezoning may be initiated. 

Since South Oroville was annexed in 2015, there has not been a comprehensive review 
of the area’s zoning as it relates to existing City Codes. Nor has there been a consistent 
review of the overall area in relation to its economic development potential, adjacent 
areas and its contribution to the general welfare of the City as a whole. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, September 26, 2019 

RE: SOUTH OROVILLE REZONING WORKSHOP 

SUMMARY:  The Planning Commission will conduct a workshop to review current zoning in the 
South Oroville area, discuss possible changes which might better reflect existing land uses and 
encourage new investment.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct an initial discussion about South Oroville and provide input to 
staff regarding potential rezoning. 

 

APPLICANTS: None. Initiated by staff  

LOCATION:  South Oroville area, as 
defined below 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  Various 

ZONING:  Various 

FLOOD ZONE:  X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   EnterTextHere 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Wes Ervin, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Leo DePaola, Director 
Community Development Department 

Leo DePaola 
Community Development Director 

 

22

Item 2.



 2 

Possible Study Area  

Staff seeks input from the Commission on defining the study area. Staff proposes a 
study that is bounded by Oro Dam Blvd on the north, the rail line on the west down to 
Palm Avenue, Ithaca Street and Faunce Way on the South, and the eastern edge of 
R-1 Zoning on the east. The proposed study area excludes Wyandotte Academy, 
Central Middle School, and the Olive Hill Manufactured Home Community.  It includes 
the Rescue Mission and the proposed South Lincoln annexation area. See attached 
Study Area Map.  

Background 
The South Oroville area started to develop over a hundred years ago but was 
substantially developed during the building of the Oroville Dam to provide housing for 
construction workers. Almost 93 percent of the parcels within the territory are 
developed with residential uses being the primary use. Popular then, it has over the 
years been supplanted by newer development and has fallen into general disrepair. 
The area is now considered low income and a disadvantaged community.  

 

Possible Discussion Topics: 

1. About half of the residential lots in the study area are 4,791 square feet in size and 
Zoned R-1. These lots are smaller than the minimum 5,000 square foot size in our 
Zoning Ordinance (Table 17.28.020-2). They are also typically 44 feet wide, 
smaller than the minimum 50 feet for R-1 Zoning. We have received several 
inquiries about residential projects that struggle to fit on these smaller R-1 lots and 
still meet setback and lot coverage requirements. 

This opens the possibility of several options: 

a. allowing reduced setbacks and/or greater maximum lot coverages. Current 
maximum coverage for a substandard lot is 2,000 square feet (Table 
17.28.020-2 Note 5); 

b. Adopting an overlay zone with a new set of flexible development standards, 
perhaps similar to those of the Downtown Historic Overlay district, which 
also has many substandard lots and design options for them; 

c. Creating an entirely new Zoning District or overlay to accommodate the 
smaller lot sizes in the area.  

d. Abandoning the narrow alleys where they exist and enlarging the lot depths.  
The alleys are supposed to be maintained by County Service Areas 17 and 
33, depending on location, but it is unclear how effective that maintenance 
program actually is; 

e. Considering changing the requirement for one covered parking space per 
parcel.  Most of the parcels in South Oroville appear not to have covered 
parking.   

2. Commercial areas along Myers and Lincoln have multiple zones, including C-1, C-
2, MXC and MXN.  We have received inquiries for uses which do not fit into existing 
zoning in the area, including requests to expand nonconforming uses.   More 
consistent zoning might better reflect the character and land uses in the area and 
might encourage better connections between the residential and commercial 
areas.  

3. Some parcels along Myers and Lincoln have the potential to be good locations for 
multi-family development. Rezoning could be designed to encourage parcel 

23

Item 2.



 3 

assemblages, strengthen the connections between residential and commercial, 
and support more housing choices in this time of severe shortages. 

4. Zoning more flexibly to accommodate and/or encourage expansion of existing 
uses such as churches, automobile repair facilities, small groceries, other local 
services, shelters, and service clubs.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT  

None.  The City has submitted a planning grant application for $160,000 under Senate 
Bill 2, which if awarded will allocate about $25,000 toward this South Oroville rezoning 
project.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Proposed Study Area Map 

  
 

24

Item 2.



C-2

C-1

MXC

CN

R-1
MXC

PQ R-1

R-1

R-1

MXC

MXC

MXC

MXC

MXC

MXC

MXC

MXC

CLM
C-1

C-2
PQ

CN
R-1

R-1
PQR-1

PQ
C-2

R-1

PQ

R-1
PQ

R-1
R-1

R-1
PQ C-2

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1 R-1

MXN
R-1 CN R-1 R-1

RL

PQ
MXN

CLM

CLM

CN

R-1

LINDEN
ST

FAY
 WAY

SP
RU

CE
PK

W
Y

FA
UN

CE
 W

AY

ELM PKWY

OM
EG

A 
LN

HA
RM

S A
VE

PALM AVE

PARKER AVE

BA
RN

ES
 W

AY

M EDI
CA

L C
EN

TE
R

DR

V-7 RD

EL
LIS

 LN

W
ILL

O W
PK

WY

CE
DA

R 
PK

WY

SYCAMORE PKWY

IDORA ST

JEF

F ERSON ST

ONTARIO AVE

BROWNAVE

RICHTER
AVE

CO
LU

MB
IA 

AV
E

BU
RL

IN
GT

ON
 AV

E

E L
NO

B L
E

A V
E

EX
EC

UT
IVE

 PK
WY

MESA AVE

A ST

FA
LL

BR
OO

K A
VE

ITHACA ST

B ST

C ST

D ST

FORT WAYNE ST

ELGIN ST

GREENVILLE ST

SP
EN

CE
R

AV
E

MAGNOLIA

PKWY

RO
SE

BE
N A

VE

OROVILLE BANGOR HWY

MITCHELL AVE

OROVILLE DAM BLVD E

LINCOLN ST

WYANDOTTE AVE

MY
ER

S S
T

MY ERS
ST

LOW
ER

WYANDOTTE RD

LIN
CO

LN
BL

VD
LIN

CO
LN

 BL
VD

OLIVE HWY

Residential Districts
Large-Lot Residential (RL) (13)
Single-Family Residential (R-1) (990)

Commercial and Mixed-Use Districts
Neighborhood Commercial (CN) (11)
Limited Commercial (C-1) (36)
Intensive Commercial (C-2) (35)
Commercial Light Manufacturing (CLM) (14)
Neighborhood Mixed Use (MXN) (23)
Corridor Mixed Use (MXC) (74)

Special Purpose Districts
Public or Quasi-Public Facilities (PQ) (15)
Potential South Oroville Rezone Study Area

Potential South Oroville Rezone Study Area

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet µ25

Item 2.


	Top
	1. August PC Minutes
	08.22.19 Minutes

	1. Minor Use Permit for Beer and Wine Sales at Chipotle Drive Thru Restaurant
	Chipotle Alcohol sales use permit staff report (1)
	Resolution 2019-12 Chipotle beer and wine (1)
	Chipotle alcohol sales application
	Chipotle drive-through 3-28-19  PC minutes approving

	2. Planning Commission Workshop to Study South Oroville Rezone Possibilities
	PC Staff report South Oroville Workshop
	South_Oro_Rezone draft study area map

	Bottom

